
 

Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 1 

July 1, 2015 

SANTA CLARA CITY COUNCIL WORK MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, JULY 1, 2015 

MINUTES 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF SANTA CLARA, WASHINGTON COUNTY, UTAH, met for a 
Work Meeting on Wednesday, July 1, at 5:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers of the Town Hall at 
2603 Santa Clara Drive, Santa Clara, Utah. 
 
Notice of the time, place and agenda of the meeting was provided to the Spectrum and to each 
member of the governing body by emailing a copy of the Notice and Agenda to the Spectrum and 
also, along with any packet information, to the mayor and each council member, at least two days 
before the meeting. 
 
Present:    Herb Basso filled in as Mayor Pro Tem.        
Council Members: David Whitehead, Jerry Amundsen, Ken Sizemore, Herb Basso  
City Manager:         Edward Dickie 
Recorder:       Chris Shelley  
Planning Commission: Curtis Jensen, Marv Wilson, Adam Butterfield, Todd Jacobsen 
 
Others Present: Brock Jacobsen, Admin Director; Jack Taylor, Public Works Director; Brad Hays, 
Parks Director; Dan Nelson, Fire Chief; Bob Nicholson, City Planner; Kaleen Lambson-Talley, 
SUHBA; Blake Frei; Shaun Alldredge; Wes Davis. 
  

1. Call to Order:  Herb Basso, City Council Member, called the meeting to order at   
5:05 p.m. 

   Mayor Rosenberg and Mayor Pro Tem Mary Jo (Tode) Hafen were excused from the  
  meeting. 
 
  This meeting is a combined meeting with the Planning Commission. 
 

2. Working Agenda:  
  

Ed Dickie, Admin Director, asked the Council if they could please go directly to Item 
#2, Solar Discussion. 

 
A. General Business                                                                                                                        
 
2.   Solar Discussion – Jack Taylor, Public Works Director. 
 
       -Jack Taylor stated that the City Council has discussed this a number of times.  He  
 mentioned that he gave a copy of the “Feed-in Tariff” to the City Council also the  
 Power of Purchase Agreement and also the Inter Connection Standards and asked 

if there was anything else the City Council would like him to change.  It will come 
before the City Council for approval on July 8.  He went on to explain the Feed-in 
Tariff policy.  The City is going to a feed -in tariff which will have 2 meters.  One 
meter will measure everything that comes into the home and the other meter will 



 

Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 2 

July 1, 2015 

measure everything that comes in from the solar.  The customer will sign a power 
of purchase agreement. We will give them $.05 a kilowatt hour for every kilowatt 
they produce off of their solar.  On a larger commercial building we would give 
them $.04 a kilowatt hour.   
-David Whitehead gave an explanation of how this will work. 
-Jack Taylor reviewed what residents are currently paying for their power. 
-David Whitehead had a concern about if power rates go up, that the incentive to  
have solar will go down.  The margin will widen.  He stated that in the future the  
City Council may have to look at this and make some adjustments. 
-Jack Taylor agreed and said they will need to look at that in the future as to what  
is going to happen when the kilowatt hours are short.  He also mentioned about  
how the generators are helping with the cost.   
-Herb Basso discussed about buying more generators in the future.  He also 
mentioned that one of his main concerns is that the general population of the  
city is not subsidizing those solar users.  We should all pay our fair share. 
-Jack Taylor said that some customers may think because they have solar they can   
go off the grid.  He stated that if someone wanted to go off the grid they could but  
they would have to pay impact fees to go back on the system.   
-Ken Sizemore had a question about the rates of medium sized businesses and 
Jack said he would get back with him on that. 
-Jack Taylor reminded the City Council of the UAMPS trip.  He said that if the City 
Council is taking their spouses that there is a form to fill out.  He needs them to get 
back with him as soon as possible so he can make reservations. 
-Ed Dickie reminded the City Council that he sent them an email about the mileage  
to Jackson Lodge and about airfare.   
-Shaun Alldredge, Legend Solar Company, stated that they have gone over some of  
the numbers and feels that it would be very bad for the customers who get  
solar.  He wants to better understand the math.  He mentioned that they will 
also be at the next City Council meeting.  He asked for information on the study  
that was done.  He wants to look at the numbers.   
-Jack Taylor explained that each city is different as per power rates.  A lot of cities 
along the Wasatch front are going to the Feed-in tariff. 
-Shaun Alldredge stated that eventually the technology will catch up and the  
power will come back through the grid and not through the cities.  The  
technology will eventually make it so that people will get a return on their 
investment.  He feels that the numbers need to be looked at again.  He feels the  
$48.00 a month is unreasonable.   
-Jack Taylor explained that it is just the customers on solar that would have to 
pay the $48.00 a month. 
-Shaun Alldredge said that based on what St. George customers are doing Santa 
Clara is paying 20 times more to cover the costs.  He still believes it should be  
looked at before the City Council makes any major decisions and reminded the 
City Council that he will be at the next City Council meeting. 
-Herb Basso suggested having a public hearing to address this issue. 
-Kaleen Lambson-Talley, SUHBA asked if they could get an electrical rate study 
before going before the City Council on July 8.  She would like a copy of the 



 

Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 3 

July 1, 2015 

power report.  She also requested a copy of the Impact Fee policy.  She questioned 
why someone would have to pay an impact fee again if they wanted to come 
back on the system. 
-Jack Taylor explained. 
-Curtis Jensen asked that if a customer disconnects why would they have to pay  
another impact fee. 
-Brock Jacobsen explained that they perhaps used the wrong term and that it 
would be a reconnect fee and that it would be a higher rate than the normal fee 
to get back on the system.  

 
1.   Discussion regarding the Santa Clara City PD Residential Zone Current                                                                                                
       Development Standard (17.68.060 and 17.68.100 Density.) Presented by 

                                   Bob Nicholson, City Planner. 
  
 -Bob Nicholson stated that Wes Davis a local realtor asked the City Council about 

the possibility of building apartments in the area and also the density of higher 
than 8 dwelling units per acre.  Mr. Davis wanted the City Council to study it and 
come up with some options.  Bob reviewed what the general plan is concerning 
density.  He reviewed 3.3 Residential Density Ranges and Average Density, 3.3.1 
Density Transitions, 3.4.2 Mixed-Use Land Uses, Main Street Commercial, Mixed-
Use Residential (MUR), General Plan Policies and PD-Residential Zone Current 
Development Standards 17.68.060, 17.68.100 and 17.68.105. (See attached.)  
There are various options we can do along these lines.  Bob informed Council, 
There is nothing that can’t be changed.  This is just a draft.   

 -Ed Dickie stated that the Mayor couldn’t be at this meeting but he had a couple of 
thoughts that he wanted passed on and so he sent an email to Ed and the City 
Council and Ed read the Mayor’s statement. 

 -Mayor Rosenberg’s statement was read:  He believes we need to modify the 
existing ordinance to provide affordable workforce housing within the 
community.  His concerns with the proposed PD Density increase are primarily 
associated with the resulting numbers of units in any particular neighborhood.  As 
written in Section D, limits projects to 40 units.  He would prefer 24 or less.  He 
would also like some language mandating a minimum separation for these 
projects so they are dispersed throughout town and not all concentrated in one 
location within the city.  We could probably take care of that with the General 
Plan.  He was Sorry he couldn’t be there.  He thanked everyone for all they do.  

 -Herb Basso stated that he remembers at another meeting that someone said that 
the general plan makes it look like the City doesn’t want apartment buildings and 
he remembers agreeing with that.  But after some discussions the City agreed to 
take a look at it to see if they could come to an agreement to see if they can satisfy 
some to affordable housing while keeping the philosophy of the ordinances and 
general plan and how Santa Clara has come to be and how it should be in the 
future.   

 -David Whitehead stated that his thought as a developer that they need to look at 
the numbers and what can be done on an apartment basis.  He believes that 24 



 

Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 4 

July 1, 2015 

units is a little bit low.  Maybe consider 32 or 34 units.  If there isn’t something 
financially feasible to a developer they aren’t going to come in and do it.   

 -Herb Basso asked about how they can address the need for transition with a 32 
unit housing next to a single family housing.  There are new areas in the 
community that they might be able to do something different.  The planning 
commission needs to take a look at it. 

 -Ed Dickie stated that as a side note that the way things are now with the 
economy it seems like there’s a big shift with the younger generation.  They can’t 
afford a single family home.  A lot of people instead are going for the condos or the 
apartments.  That’s just happening now, a lot, especially with the younger group.  
It would be good to have something like this within the city to keep our younger 
generation-to have something for them. 

 -David Whitehead agreed and stated that the trend seems to be going that way.  
Home ownership is much lower and is continuing to go that way. 

 -Herb Basso stated that the trend is going that way and the smaller units could 
even be up to 3 bedrooms.  He stated that he is a proponent of smaller units. 

 -Marv Wilson referred to what Ed said about the younger generation.  The 
building design material is 20% density and variation in height and building 
footprint and varied colors and textures.  This used to be a negative and now it’s a 
positive.  It could end up being a negative again.  He asked who’s going to be the 
policeman of this. 

 -Jerry Amundsen stated that we live in a beautiful area and discussed the different 
colors of homes and do they blend in. 

 -Ken Sizemore wanted to know where the Planning Commission is on this issue 
and wondered if they have discussed this in a formal meeting. 

 -Bob Nicholson stated that they have not. 
 -Curtis Jensen agreed with the Mayor’s statement about dispersing the units 

throughout the city.  He also agrees with Ed about looking to the future and 
bringing the younger generation back to the City and to give them opportunities 
to come back home.  Maybe we should change some of the wording on the 
ordinance.   

 -Herb Basso suggested that the details need to be clarified. 
 -Curtis Jensen stated that parking would also be a factor and asked if that is 

something they would include.  Would that need to be reviewed in a higher 
density? 

 -Bob Nicholson stated that there would be 2 parking spaces per unit.  It could be 
looked at. 

 -Ken Sizemore asked Bob if 40 units is a project Bob has reviewed and put 
through with the City of St. George.  Is that number high?  Is it low?   

 -Bob Nicholson stated that it is definitely not high.  Most of the units that have 
been built in St. George in the past ten years are over 100 units.  There is one 
being built downtown right now that is 140 units.   

 -Herb Basso stated that speaking of something downtown is different than Santa 
Clara.  40 units is high for a project.  That number needs to be weighed against 
single family units and per acre.  We don’t want 40 units in a half acre next to a 
single family house.   



 

Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 5 

July 1, 2015 

 -Wes Davis, Developer, stated that he has had a chance to review this and they 
need to focus on what size, what project and the substantial cost of improvements 
such as playgrounds, swimming pools, etc.  It may not be financially viable for 
smaller units.  If you get into a 30 to 40 unit range and a 2 acre project you are 
looking at a more feasible project.  There can be added design, etc. to make a 
transitions from a commercial spot to a residential spot.  He stated he thinks 12 
units per acre.  He talked about 1 and 2 bedroom units.  The overall occupancy 
should go down.  In order to provide a nice unit, a nice project, you have to be able 
to get the density and you have to be able to disperse those costs over the number 
of units to make it financially viable.    

 -Herb Basso stated that a large density really changes a neighborhood.  The 
transition of a large project is what concerns him. 

 -Wes Davis discussed some of the areas they have looked at. 
 -Kaleen Lambson-Talley, SUHBA, stated that as a resident of Santa Clara and as a 

representative of SUHBA, she can see both needs.  We need to consider what the 
citizens are wanting.  She wondered when this proposal will go before the council. 

 She thought it was interesting that a developer was at the meeting when the 
planning commission has not yet seen the proposal.  She thought the points 
brought up were very good. 

 -Adam Butterfield stated that it is a different dynamic and can change the face of 
the neighborhood.  He stated that he is resistant to big change.  He questioned that 
with the thought of it being spread out, where does it need to be to make sense? 
The City Council needs to take that in to consideration.  There are some negative 
aspects to large apartment building developments.   

 Kaleen Lambson-Talley asked about the traffic study.  Did it take into account a 
larger number of vehicles?  

 -David Whitehead stated that the ideal situation would be a small mixed-use 
 city center.  This won’t happen in an established area, maybe in a new area.  We 

could designate the areas where the units could go.    
 -Bob Nicholson talked about the MUR on the General Plan.  There aren’t that many 

mixed-use residential areas.  The General Plan has already shown the locations.  It 
gives us some direction of the locations and where they might go.   

 -Kaleen Lambson-Talley stated that SUHBA’s mission is to work together to build 
a better community.  She stated that they want to do what’s best for the 
community and also make financial sense for the developer.  That needs to be 
looked at.   

 -Ken Sizemore stated that there has been a good discussion.  Bob will look at the 
input and take it to the planning commission.     

 -Bob Nicholson agreed that it will go back to the planning commission and they 
will work on the draft and bring it back to the City Council meeting. 

 -Herb Basso stated that he feels it needs further discussion. 
 -Jerry Amundsen asked what further discussion does there need to be?  The 

planning commission needs to come with a set of rules that the City Council can 
actually have a discussion on.  There may need to be another work meeting after it 
has gone to the planning commission.   



 

Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 6 

July 1, 2015 

 -Herb Basso stated that what he liked to see is a discussion on more of the 
specifics and the density. 

 -Ken Sizemore stated there was a lot of opposition in the 70’s about the Heights 
and now we all agree that our community wouldn’t be the same without the 
Heights.  We need to recognize that with the younger generation that we’ve got to 
start accommodating the demand that’s out there without trying to stick to the 
20th century mode of development.    

 -Jerry Amundsen stated that the generations coming up can’t afford single family 
dwellings and some don’t want them.   

 -Herb Basso stated that the Planning Commission will continue to go over this and 
bring it back to the City Council. 

 -Blake Frei, Developer, stated that people looking for a single family dwelling 
don’t look at Santa Clara because the prices are higher than in St. George and 
Washington.  He mentioned other multi-unit buildings that are doing well.  
Change is good and we need to look at it.  There are very few duplexes and 
fourplexes in Santa Clara.  Those people who live there, love them. 

 -Ed Dickie stated that if it is done right and looks nice, it will help our community 
quite a bit.  He stated that Zion’s Finance did a study and Santa Clara was one of 
the highest for single family residence.  It really hurts the tax base.  Santa Clara 
receives about half of what Ivins receives in property tax.   

 
 The Planning Commission was excused. 
 
        3.  Staff Reports: 
 
  Fire Chief Dan Nelson 

 The fireworks restrictions are the same as last year. 
 The City Water Tender is on the Arizona Strip.  Ty Hansen is leading the crew. 

 
  Brad Hays 

 The final grading for the Pickle Ball courts will happen in August.  Lights have 
been ordered and should be done by October or November.   

 Herb had a suggestion about Brad’s crew.  He said they are weeding right now 
on Santa Clara Drive.  Could they put a cone around where they are weeding?  
They could get hit by a car.  A cone will always be seen and the drivers will be 
more aware of them. 

 Brad said yes.  
 Ken asked if there are flags on all the poles so that there won’t be any 

complaints.  Brad replied that they will all be out. 
 
  Ed Dickie 

 Everything is going well.  Brock will be gone for 2 weeks on vacation.  Cory 
will be back on Monday.   

 The City got a room tax for $2.400 for one month.  It was more than we were 
hoping and we are heading in a good direction with that. 



 

Santa Clara City Council Work Meeting Page 7 

July 1, 2015 

 As far as travelling to Jackson Lodge for UAMPS he suggested buying the plane 
tickets on their own and they can get reimbursed.  The city doesn’t pay for 
spouses but they do pay for their registrations so they can have the meals and 
do the activities.  The Council can change that in the future.     

 
 The Santa Clara City Offices are closed on Friday for the Independence Day holiday. 
 
4. Adjournment: 
 
Meeting Adjourned at 6:44 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
    __________________________       Date Approved: ________________ 
Chris Shelley – City Recorder 
 


